RIVERSIDE
DOWNTOWN
PARTNERSHIP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
7:30 AM WEDNESDAY, JUNE 14, 2017
THE CENTER FOR ARTS AND PHILANTHROPY

Minutes

Present: Chuck Beaty, Patrick Brien, Gerald Douglas, John Field, Michelle Freeman, Bill
Gardner, Rafael Guzman, Wolde-Ab Isaac, Jeff Kraus, Shalini Lockard, Stan Morrison, Bob
Nagle, Geoff Neely, Shelby Worthington, Sergio San Martin, Bud Sketchley, Justin Tracy
Excused: Cherie Crutcher, Nanci Larsen, Brian Pearcy, David St. Pierre, Charity Schiller,
Absent: lan Davidson, Marco McGuire, Amir Mertaban, Lou Monville, Cara Swearingen

Ex-Officio ABP / City Council: ABP — written report / Mike Gardner
Staff: Janice Penner, Kate Stovicek

1) Call to Order
Shelby Worthington called the meeting to order.

2) Self Introductions and Public Comments
Conducted.

Dr. Wolde-Ab Isaac stated that Riverside Community College’s graduation had over 4,000 guests
with 769 students that walked and 3,747 students that graduated.

Councilman Mike Gardner reminded everyone to purchase tickets to the City Council regatta if
they had not already done so.

Bill Gardner stated that he was pleased to see the improvements made to the landscaping on the
Pedestrian Mall.

Chuck Beaty said that safety was extremely important in the current environment and noted that
City Hall had increased its safety measures and would continue to do so.

2a) Introduction of new Board Members
Kevin Townsend was introduced as replacing Bruce Blomdahl who had been promoted to
Captain.

Bud Sketchley was introduced as replacing Katie Leal who had been transferred to a Moreno
Valley Provident Bank branch.

3) Minutes of May 10, 2017

Motion: To accept the Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2017

Motion made by: Chuck Beaty Motion Seconded by: Bill Gardner
Motion carried



4) Chair’s Report

Shelby Worthington welcomed Kevin Townsend and Bud Sketchley. She stated that she and
Michelle Freeman had walked down Main Street in the evening the previous Tuesday and it was
very pleasant. She said the restaurants were full, the area was lively and vibrant, and they
observed only one homeless person.

5) Items for Discussion

5a) Approval of budget for July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

Janice Penner said that the Finance Committee met on Thursday, May 4™ to review the proposed
budget. She noted that there was an increase in health insurance due to two staff persons going
into an older age bracket. She said the Finance Committee adopted a motion to recommend
approval of the budget as presented.

Janice Penner said that the Executive Committee reviewed the budget and adopted a motion to
recommend its approval by the Board of Directors, including salary increases for the Office
Manager/Bookkeeper and Communications and Events Liaison, and for Ambassadors. She said
that the increases were in part due to the increase in the minimum wage.

Motion: To approve the proposed budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.
Motion made by: Bill Gardner Motion Seconded by: Patrick Brien
Motion carried.

Chuck Beaty inquired if RDP would be providing a contribution towards the 25" Anniversary
Festival of Lights float that would be in the Rose Parade. Janice Penner stated RDP had not been
approached to do so. Chuck Beaty noted that a significant amount of money for the float was
being raised quickly, and if RDP wanted recognition, a contribution needed to be made within the
near future. Stan Morrison stated that the money raised for the float had passed the $200,000
mark and he was surprised RDP had not been approached. Counciiman Mike Gardner
commented that RDP should consider itself to have been approached.

5b) Confirmation of contribution to StreetPlus Safety Ambassador Program

Janice Penner said RDP was asked to provide confirmation of its contribution to the StreetPlus
Safety Ambassador Program. She said a copy of the letter provided to the City was in the Board
Package. Rafael Guzman stated that the agreement would be going to Council on July 11" with
the program planned to begin August 1%. Janice Penner inquired why the item was delayed in
going to Council from the previously set date of June 27". Rafael Guzman stated that it was
delayed due to internal reasons.

Janice Penner added that RDP was changing the hours of the weekday shift of its Ambassador
Program from 11 am to 6:30 pm to 9 am to 5 pm effective July 1%. She stated that the change
was made so that the ambassadors could deal with some of the transient and homeless problems
for businesses on Main Street and University Avenue.

5c) BID Renewal Report to be approved in August
Janice Penner said that as RDP was going dark in September rather than August, the BID
Renewal Report would be prepared for approval by the Board at its August meeting.



5d) Attendance at IDA conference in September

Janice Penner said that the budget included an allowance for the Executive Director and one
Executive Committee member to attend the conference in Winnipeg. She said that Shalini
Lockard was attending as the Executive Committee member. She advised that in the past, RDP
covered conference registration for Board members who agreed to cover their own travel and
hotel expenses. She asked that Board members interested in doing advise her as soon as
possible so the Executive Committee could allocate funds towards conference registrations.

6) Items for Information

6a) Rescheduling of RDP Membership mixer

Shelby Worthington stated that the RDP membership mixer would be rescheduled to a later date.
She said that Board members would be advised once a date was selected.

6b) RDP activities

i) Update on Doors Open
Janice Penner stated that the number of attendees increased this year as compared to last year.
She noted that Riverside was the only City in California that held a Doors Open event. She added
that RDP had originated a number of unique events such as Zombie Crawl and the Fashion
Shows.

Shelby Worthington commented that she was surprised that other California cities did not host a
Doors Open event because it was so successful the first year and seemed to continue to grow.
Janice Penner said that in 2018 the event make some adjustments to the time frame so that
locations outside of downtown could participate.

Shelby Worthington inquired if buildings had to have a historical designation to participate. Janice
Penner replied that they were looking for unique architecture as well.

i) Restaurant Week
Janice Penner stated that it would start on Friday, June 16 and that she had sent out another
email encouraging restaurants to participate. She stated that the downtown area had the largest
number of participants with 24 restaurants participating as of June 14. She said she hoped to get
up to 30, noting that it was great promotion and cost the restaurants nothing to participate.

Janice Penner encouraged everyone to visit the website dineriverside.com to view all of the
participating restaurants and what each would be offering. She added that the website was
maintained by the city and that the number of visits would be tracked. She added that RDP had its
own Restaurant Week Facebook page that would be promoting downtown specials.

iii) Other events and programs
Shelby Worthington stated that Concerts at City Hall would begin June 20" and continue until July
25" excluding July 4". She stated that RDP would arrange for a pizza party for City Council and
Senior Staff on July 11™ and extend an invitation the RDP Board to attend.

Shelby Worthington said that the next RDP monthly luncheon would be held at Heroes and
feature Dulce Gomez on parking.

3



7) Financial Reports

7a) Financial report at May 31, 2017

Janice Penner said that the financial report showed a deficiency of $6,563 for the month
compared to an expected deficiency of $7,249. She said that for the year to date there was a
surplus of $58,972 compared to an expected surplus of $7,456 due largely to BID levy income
above budget by $61,738 for the year. She noted that would be adjustments in June to City Match
monies.

Motion: To accept the financial report at May 31, 2017

Motion made by: Bill Gardner Motion Seconded by: Patrick Brien

Motion carried

Bill Gardner inquired about the push to increase RDP’s membership that was brought forward
several months prior. Shelby Worthington stated that the major effort to increase membership
would be the membership mixer. Janice Penner stated that when a new business opened in the
BID, staff sent an information packet that included membership information.

Shelby Worthington noted that people usually thought of a Chamber of Commerce when they
opened a new business rather than a downtown BID. Janice Penner added that people also often
saw the BID levy as a membership fee as well as an assessment. She stated that the mixer would
expand beyond downtown businesses to those people who have an interest in downtown.

8) City Council Updates

8a) Ward One

Councilman Mike Gardner stated that there was a new Council member, Chuck Conder, who
replaced Paul Davis. He said that Chuck Conder had been Chris Mac Arthur’s legislative field
representative. He added that Chuck Conder would be sworn in on June 27™.

Councilman Mike Gardner stated that Councilman Andy Melendrez's mother had passed away a
week prior which was why he was not in attendance.

Councilman Mike Gardner added that the Metropolitan Museum re-accreditation was on hold for
several issues. He said that the staff was recommending that the museum be closed for about
three years for renovations and inventory of the collections. He said that there needed to be a
complete inventory along with decisions as to what to keep and what to part with. He stated that
the Council approved $4.9 million for museum renovation and expansion. He added that Council
would decide if the museum should be closed and if so for how long.

Councilman Mike Gardner said that with the new security system at City Hall, visitors had to go to
a kiosk and provide their name, floor and length of visit, and have a photo taken. He said that the
photo and name were stored in City Hall's records of visitors. He added that the elevators would
be modified so that they could not be taken without a City ID or a Visitor Pass and only to access
the floor designated.

Councilman Mike Gardner stated that the Commercial Center that was part of the Center Point
Place was under construction. He said that the project was a 125 unit apartment complex on the
block between 1% and 2™ on the west side of Market.

Councilman Mike Gardner stated that the Stalder Plaza Project would break ground within the
next 30 days. He added that the meters had been removed from the parking lot at 6™ and Market

4



so there was free parking until construction begins. He said that the whole half block would be
excavated with three levels of subterranean parking. He added that the facade would be braced
into the street on Mission Inn Avenue and on Market Street for close to two years and would
impact traffic and the Festival of Lights.

Councilman Mike Gardner stated that there was discussion among the City Council about selling
parking garage 3 between University Avenue and Mission Inn Avenue to build a six story
subterranean parking garage with a six story vertical office space/residential building. He added
that if the City did decide to sell it for development, construction would not take place until after the
construction on Stalder Plaza had been completed.

Bill Gardner inquired about the new restaurant operator in City Hall. Councilman Mike Gardner
stated that Lift Coffee Roasters had moved into City Hall. He added that they had expanded their
menu and made some fiscal modifications and was interested in a long term contract.

Bill Gardner congratulated Andy Melendrez on his reelection.

8b)Ward Two
As noted, Councilman Andy Melendrez was not in attendance so there was no update.

9) Security Update

Kevin Townsend stated that he had met with Bruce Blomdahl several times to make the transition
as smooth as possible. He encouraged Board members to share suggestions, questions, and
concerns with him.

10) City Community Development Department Update

Rafael Guzman stated that the Hampton Hotel going in on 5" and Market Street had their grading
permit issued and were nearing a start date. He stated that the architectural firm’s building on the
corner of 10" and Market was going through massive renovation and was close to a grand
opening. He also added that the Imperial Hardware Lofts project was a bit ahead of schedule.

Rafael Guzman stated that he gave a presentation to the Riverside Chamber of Commerce and
received positive feedback on the customer service changes that the City was making. He stated
that construction valuation was at an all-time high. He stated that a recent study had indicated that
Riverside was one of the number one places to be for college students.

Rafael Guzman said that the One Stop Shop would have a grand opening on May 30". He added
that the One Stop Shop was on the third floor of City Hall and had a dedicated elevator. He said
that all of the development teams were represented including finance, public utilities, fire, public
works, planning, economic development, historic preservation and more. He added that there
was now a synchronized plan check and review so that all of the departments were on the same
timeline. He added that there was more attention to customer satisfaction and the new system
that allows customers to rate their experience indicated there was an average of 94% positive
feedback for the past 75 days.

Stan Morrison congratulated Rafael Guzman and commended him for his leadership.



Bill Gardner commented on the new statue at University and Market and congratulated the City on
the installation.

11) Arlington Business Partnership Update
Janice Penner stated that ABP had unveiled four monument signs to indicate visitors are entering
the Arlington area at four separate locations.

Janice Penner said that the Chili Cook-off and Car Show was held on May 27" with an estimated
attendance of about 20,000, which was lower than the previous year. She said that financially it
was better than previous years as it did not lose as much money.

Janice Penner said that ABP was working on a maintenance schedule for the five bus shelters,
three murals and paseo. She added that ABP was working with RDP on Restaurant Week and
with Park and Rec on Movies in the Park.

12) New Business

Shelby Worthington inquired if the bus stop at University and Lemon could be removed. Janice
Penner replied that it was one of the permanent ones. Shelby Worthington then inquired if the
temporary canopies from cell phone companies could be removed as they caused many
problems. Councilman Mike Gardner stated that Code Enforcement need to be contacted to
move them along.

Janice Penner stated that Councilman Andy Melendrez had raised an interesting point to look into
further. He had said that RTA had security at the bus depot and wondered if RTA could have
security for the bus stops on University Avenue. Kevin Townsend stated that moving the bus
terminal only dispersed the problem and suggested that having the benches temporarily removed
might help with the problem.

Patrick Brien stated that the Director of the Americans for the Arts Action Funds happened to be in
Riverside for meetings and a workshop on the night of Doors Open. He said that she was
extremely impressed with the number of people and the event.

13) Adjournment and next meeting date
The meeting was adjourned until Wednesday, July 12, 2017



